

**AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS OF
Stoneridge at Bent Mountain Property Owners Association, Inc.**

Article I - Name and Principal Office Location

The name of the corporation is Stoneridge at Bent Mountain Property Owners Association, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Association"). The principal office of the corporation shall be located Roanoke County, Virginia.

Article II - Definitions

The following terms, as used in these Bylaws, shall have the following meanings:

(a) "Common Elements" shall mean all real property and interests in real property (including easements) owned by the Association.

(b) "Conduct of Meetings" The President, who shall be a Director of the Executive Board, shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Secretary who may be but does not have to be a Director shall keep a minute book of the Board of Directors recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors and a record of all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings. The then current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of the meetings of the Board of Directors when not in conflict with the Declaration or the Articles.

(c) "Declarant" shall mean and refer to Stoneridge at Bent Mountain, LLC, its successors and assigns, if such successors or assigns shall acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from Declarant for the purpose of development and are designated as a Declarant in a recorded instrument executed by Stoneridge at Bent Mountain, LLC.

(d) "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for Stoneridge at Bent Mountain recorded as Instrument number _____ in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Roanoke County, Virginia, as the same may be amended.

(e) "Development" shall mean and refer to the Lots and Common Elements that are subject to the Declaration.

(f) "Lot" shall mean and refer to a numbered parcel of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Development including any houses or outbuildings located on the lot.

(g) "Member" shall mean and refer to every person or entity entitled to membership as provided in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association and in Article III of these Bylaws.

(h) "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of fee simple title to any Lot in the Development, but excluding those having such interest solely as security for an obligation.

Article III - Membership

Section 1. Membership and Allocation of Votes: As provided in the Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration, every Owner of a Lot in the Development shall be a member of the Association. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of the Lot. As provided in the Declaration, there shall be one vote for each Lot for all matters subject to a vote of the Members. However, none of Declarant's lots shall be entitled to be voted on Association business, in exchange for the Association's Agreement to waive assessments owed on said lots by Declarant.

Section 2. Co-owners. If a Lot is owned by two or more co-owners and only one of the co-owners is present at a meeting of the Owners, the co-owner who is present is entitled to cast the vote allocated to that Lot. If more than one of the co-owners is present, the vote allocated to that Lot may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the multiple co-owners. Majority agreement is conclusively presumed if any one of the co-owners casts the vote allocated to that Lot without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the other co-owner(s) of the Lot.

Section 3. Proxies. The votes allocated to a Lot may be cast pursuant to a proxy duly executed by the Owner. If a property is owned by two or more co-owners, each co-owner may vote or register protest to the casting of vote by the other co-owner(s) of the Lot through a duly executed proxy. An Owner may not revoke a proxy given pursuant to this section except by actual notice of revocation to the person presiding over a meeting of the Members. A proxy is void if it is not dated. A proxy terminates eleven (11) months after its date, unless it specifies a shorter term, and in any event a proxy shall automatically terminate upon conveyance of the Lot.

Article IV - Meetings of Members

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Members shall be held shall be held at such time and place as the Executive Board may prescribe.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called at any time by the President or the Executive Board.

Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty (60) days before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting. Waiver by a Member in writing of the notice required herein, signed by him before or after such meeting, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Section 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of Members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, thirty percent (30%) of the votes shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these Bylaws. If such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, those present shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented. Declarant lots shall not be considered in determining a quorum.

Article V - Executive Board

Section 1. Number. The affairs of the Association shall be managed under the direction of an Executive Board consisting of three (3) directors, who must be Members of the Association.

Section 2. Term of Office. Except as otherwise provided herein, directors shall hold office for a period of one (1) year or until their successors are appointed or elected.

Section 3. Removal. Any director, may be removed from the Executive Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members of the Association. In the event of the death, resignation or removal of a director, a successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Executive Board, and shall serve for the unexpired term of the predecessor.

Section 4. Compensation. No director shall receive compensation for service in such capacity. However, a director may be reimbursed for actual and reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of such director's duties.

Section 5. Action Without a Meeting. The Executive Board shall have authority to take any action without a meeting that it could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval or consent of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Executive Board.

Article VI - Appointment and Election of Executive Board

Section 1. Nomination and Election of Directors by the Members. Nomination and election of directors by the Members shall be conducted in the following manner:

(a) A Nominating Committee appointed by the Executive Board shall make nominations for directors. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the meeting of Members. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a chairperson, who shall be a member of the Executive Board, and two (2) or more Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Executive Board as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Nominees shall not be required to be Members.

(b) Election to the Executive Board shall be by secret written ballot. The person(s) receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting shall not be permitted.

Section 2. Vacancies. After the resignation or removal of the director, the remaining directors shall appoint a person to fill any vacancy on the Executive Board until the next annual meeting of Members, at which time the Members shall elect a person to such position. With respect to any director elected by the Members or appointed by the Executive Board to fill a vacancy, the Executive Board shall have authority to declare such position vacant if the director shall be absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Executive Board.

Article VII - Meetings of Executive Board

Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be held at such time.

and place and with such notice as shall be determined by the Executive Board.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Executive Board shall be held when called by the President or by any two directors, upon not less than three (3) days notice to each director.

Section 3. Quorum; Manner of Acting. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Executive Board. The joinder of a director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such director for the purpose of determining a quorum. The Executive Board may also take action without a meeting by a written consent signed by all of the directors.

Section 4. Waiver of Notice. Any director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

Article VIII - Powers and Duties of the Executive Board

Section 1. Powers. The Executive Board shall have power to:

(a) adopt and publish Rules and Regulations governing the Common Elements and improvements thereon, and establish penalties, including reasonable fines, for violations thereof or for any damage thereto;

(b) suspend the voting rights of a Member during any period in which such Member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment, fine or other charge levied by the Association;

(c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to the Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration;

(d) contract for the maintenance of the Common Elements and any additions thereto, as well as contract for the maintenance of the street lighting described in the Declaration; and

(e) engage attorneys to represent the Association when deemed necessary.

(f) Adopt and administer a Complaint Procedure, consistent with the mandate from the Common Interest Community Board, to allow Members to a hearing on any alleged violation of the Rules and Regulations

Section 2. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Executive Board to:

(a) cause to be kept a complete record of all of its acts and proceedings of the Executive Board, and present a summary thereof to the Members at the annual meeting of the Members, and at any special meeting when requested in writing by Members with not less than thirty percent (30%) of the votes;

(b) cause the Common Elements and the street lighting to be maintained as provided in the Declaration, and supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association;

(c) fix the amount of the annual assessment (maximum and actual) against each Lot as provided in the Declaration, cause written notice of each assessment to be sent to every Owner, and take action as necessary to collect any past due assessments;

(d) cause the Association to issue, upon demand by any Owner, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment against such Owner's Lot has been paid (a reasonable charge may be made for such certificate);

(e) procure and maintain hazard insurance on the Common Elements and any personal property owned by the Association, and liability insurance covering the Association (the Executive Board may also cause the Association to procure and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance); and

(f) cause all officers, employees and/or management agents having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate.

Article IX - Officers and Their Duties

Section 1. Principal Offices. The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The President and Vice President must be appointed from among the members of the Executive Board. The Secretary and Treasurer may be the same person and need not be members of the Executive Board.

Section 2. Appointment and Term of Principal Officers. The Executive Board shall appoint the principal officers of the Association for a one year term at the first meeting of the Executive Board following each annual meeting of the Members. An officer may be reappointed for successive terms.

Section 3. Duties of Principal Officers. The duties of the officers are as follows:

(a) President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association, preside at all meetings of the Executive Board, and see that actions of the Executive Board are carried out. The President shall sign all contracts and other written instruments on behalf of the Association.

(b) Vice President. The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of the absence, inability or refusal to act of the President, and exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Executive Board.

(c) Secretary. The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Executive Board and of the Members, give notice of meetings of the Executive Board and of the Members, and perform such other duties as may be required by the Executive Board.

(d) Treasurer. The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association, disburse such funds as directed by the Executive Board, keep proper books of account, and prepare an annual budget and statement of income and expenditures to be represented to the Members at the annual meeting.

Section 4. Special Appointments. The Executive Board may appoint such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Executive Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 5. Resignation and Removal. The Executive Board may remove any officer from office, with or without cause. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Executive Board, the President or Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 6. Vacancies. The Executive Board may fill any vacancy in the position of an officer at any time. The person appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer replaced.

Article X - Committees

The Executive Board shall appoint a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Bylaws. The Executive Board shall follow the procedure outlined in the Declaration for appointment to the Architectural Review Committee and may appoint other committees from time to time as it deems appropriate in carrying out its duties and the functions of the Association.

Article XI - Assessments; Annual Budget; Fiscal Year

Section 1. Assessments. As more fully provided in the Declaration, each Member is obligated to pay to the Association assessments, which are secured by a continuing lien upon the Member's Lot. Assessments that are not paid when due shall bear interest and may be subject to late charges. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated or foreclose the lien against the Lot.

Section 2. Annual Budget. Unless otherwise determined by the Executive Board, an annual budget for the Association for the next year shall be presented at the annual meeting of the Members. The budget shall be deemed ratified unless at that meeting Members with a majority of the votes in the Association reject the budget. In the event the proposed budget is rejected, the periodic budget last ratified by the Members shall be continued until such time as the Members ratify a subsequent budget proposed by the Executive Board.

Section 3. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the 31st day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.

Article XII - Books and Records

The books and records of the Association shall be subject to inspection upon request and reasonable notice by any Member or any Institutional Lender (as that term is defined in the Declaration).

Article XIII - Amendments

Except as otherwise provided herein or by law, the Executive Board may amend these Bylaws at any regular or special meeting of the Executive Board; provided that the notice of the meeting must state

that an amendment to the Bylaws will be considered and describe the proposed amendment. Any amendment must be approved by a majority of the directors in office at the time the amendment is adopted.

Article XIV - Conflicts

In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws, the Articles shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

Article XV - Complaint Procedure

See Schedule "A" attached hereto.

Certification

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed and acting Secretary of Stoneridge at Bent Mountain Property Owners Association, Inc., and that the foregoing Bylaws constitute the original Bylaws of said Association, as duly adopted by the Executive Board on ,20 .

_____, Secretary

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE FOR
Stoneridge at Bent Mountain Property Owners Association, Inc.

Managing Agent or Association Contact: _____

Phone: _____

PURSUANT TO SECTION 55-530(E) OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA (1950), AS AMENDED, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (HEREINAFTER "BOARD") OF STONERIDGE AT BENT MOUNTAIN (THE "ASSOCIATION") HAS ESTABLISHED THE FOLLOWING COMPLAINT PROCEDURE FOR USE BY PERSONS WHO WISH TO FILE WRITTEN COMPLAINTS WITH THE ASSOCIATION.

1. **BOARD ACTION:** The complaint must be in writing and sent to: Stoneridge at Bent Mountain Property Owners Association, Inc. at PO Box 202, Bent Mountain, Virginia 24059.
2. **COMPLAINT:** Legibly describe the complaint in the space provided on this form, including the following. If there is insufficient space, please attach a separate sheet to this complaint form. Also attach any supporting documents related to the complaint.
 - (a) References to specific facts and circumstances at issue.
 - (b) The names of any individuals who have direct knowledge of the facts.
 - (c) Provisions of the Association documents or governing statutes that support the complaint.
3. **COMPLETE FORM:** Sign, and print your name and address, and submit the completed form to the Association at the address listed above. Anonymous complaints will not be accepted.
4. **APPEAL:** If, after the Board's consideration and review of the complaint, the Board issues a final decision adverse to your complaint, you are entitled to give notice to the Common Interest Community Board ("CICB") of any adverse decision in accordance with the regulations of the CICB. The notice shall be filed within thirty (30) days of the date of the final adverse decision, shall be in writing on forms provided by CICB, shall include copies of all documents related or pertinent to the decision, and must include a \$25.00 filing fee. The appeal and supporting documentation would be sent to:

Office of the Common Interest Community Ombudsman c/o
Heather Gillespie, Esquire
Virginia Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation
9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 400
Richmond, VA 23233 (804) 367-2941
cicombudsmanoffice@dDor.virginia.gov

COMPLAINT:

COMPLAINANT:

(Printed Name)

(Signature)

(Date)

(Address)

For Association Use Only:

Date Received by Board: _____